
BOARD OF REGENTS
for

KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY

Regular Meeting of the Board of Regents
Thursday, December 6, 2018

1 p.m.
Board of Regents Room | 2nd Floor

Julian M. Carroll Academic Services Building
400 East Main

Frankfort, KY 40601
Page 1 of 433



KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY
MISSION STATEMENT

Kentucky State University is a public, comprehensive, historically black land-grant university 
committed to advancing the Commonwealth of Kentucky, enhancing society, and impacting 
individuals by providing quality teaching with a foundation in liberal studies, scholarly research, 
and public service to enable productive lives within the diverse global economy.

KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY
VISION STATEMENT

Kentucky State University prepares today’s students as global citizens, lifelong learners and problem 
solvers. To accomplish this, Kentucky State University must challenge itself and its students to be 
the best. It must recognize its strengths, expand and excel. Notwithstanding, it must also welcome 
change and quality improvement. By doing so, KSU will gain widespread recognition as one of the 
region’s strongest universities. As a university of distinction, Kentucky State University will create 
an environment where:

	 l	 Students are first.
	 l	 Diversity is valued, understood and respected.
	 l	 Diverse, motivated and talented students, staff and faculty are actively recruited and retained.
	 l	 An intellectual environment conducive to leadership in teaching, research and community
  service is encouraged and supported.
	 l	 Effective teaching is promoted both inside and outside the classroom.
	 l	 Students are taught how to obtain, evaluate and use information.
	 l	 Learning is lifelong.
	 l	 Effective and efficient fiscal management by the administration is the norm.
	 l	 Collegiality is the norm, not the exception.
	 l	 Each person is a change agent.
	 l	 Excellence starts with me.

Page 2 of 433



KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY
CORE VALUES

Through the core values, we- the faculty, staff, administration and students of Kentucky State 
University – communicate to all our stakeholders and constituents the way in which we choose to 
do business. The following values that we hold are essential to achieving the University’s mission:

Student Centered Philosophy
In everything we do, our students come first. We strive to create an environment that values 
the unique backgrounds, perspectives and talents of all our students and provide them with the 
academic, leadership and social tools to help them grow as responsible, knowledgeable and creative 
global citizens. We encourage attitudes and behaviors that lead to a desire to learn, a commitment 
to goals and respect for the dignity of others. Ultimately, we encourage attitudes and behaviors that 
build success.

Excellence and Innovation
We believe in student’s potential to learn and to connect what they learn inside and outside the 
classroom to solving problems for productive changes. We strive to offer excellent academic 
programs; to encourage exploration and discovery through providing outstanding instruction, 
technology and facilities; and to ignite a curiosity toward the world and a passion for lifelong 
learning. We seek to reward the pursuit and achievement of excellence and innovation in an 
environment where freedom of thought and expression are valued. We want all members of our 
campus community to leave a mark through their creativity, curiosity, discovery, exploration and 
ingenuity.

Ethical Conduct
We encourage the sharing of information in an open and responsible manner while maintaining 
the highest ethical and moral standards. The standards are reflected in our commitment to 
accountability and to personal responsibility for our choices and actions. We encourage respect 
for the dignity, diversity and right of individuals. We welcome all students who commit themselves 
to learning, knowing that students and faculty with diverse perspective enhance our classroom 
experience.

Social Responsibility
We share responsibility for each other and are committed to providing opportunities for the 
participation in the economic, political and cultural life of our local, state, regional, national and 
global communities. We are sensitive to our surrounding community; therefore, we recognize the 
value of integrating classroom learning with the community experience. Our commitment is to 
provide leadership and to establish partnerships for addressing community and workforce needs 
and to make a positive difference in the city of Frankfort, the Commonwealth of Kentucky and the 
world.

Page 3 of 433



KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY
INSTITUTIONAL OFFICERS

Dr. M. Christopher Brown II
Eighteenth President

Dr. Lucian Yates III
Interim Provost and Vice President for Academic Affairs

Mr. Douglas R. Allen II
Vice President for Finance and Administration / CFO

Ms. Clara Ross Stamps
Vice President for Brand Identity and University Relations

Dr. Jeffery T. Burgin Jr.
Acting Vice President for Enrollment Management and Student Management

Ms. Wendy Kobler
Vice President for Institutional Advancement

Ms. Lisa Lang
General Counsel and Records Custodian

Ms. Etienne Thomas
Director of Intercollegiate Athletics

Page 4 of 433



KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY
BOARD MEMBERS

Mr. Ron Banks (2023)

Ms. Mindy Barfield, Esq. (2021)

Dr. Karen W. Bearden (2019)

Dr. Elaine Farris (2020), Chairperson

Mr. Derrick Gilmore, MS (2019), Staff Regent

Mr. Paul C. Harnice, Esq. (2022)

Mr. Dalton Jantzen, MS (2022)

Dr. Elgie McFayden (2019), Faculty Regent

Dr. Syamala H.K. Reddy (2021)

Mr. Roger Reynolds (2024)

Mr. Micheal Weaver (2019), Student Regent
    

KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY
ELECTED BOARD OFFICERS

Dr. Elaine Farris, Chairperson

Mr. Dalton Jantzen, Vice Chairperson

Dr. M. Christopher Brown II, Secretary

Vacant, Treasurer

     

Page 5 of 433



KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY
BOARD COMMITTEES

ACADEMIC AFFAIRS 
Regent Dalton Jantzen, Chair 
Regent Ron Banks 
Regent Mindy Barfield 
Regent Elgie McFayden 

BRAND IDENTITY 
AND UNIVERSITY RELATIONS
Regent Roger Reynolds, Chair 
Regent Michael Weaver
Regent Dalton Jantzen 
Regent Elgie McFayden 

INSTITUTIONAL ADVANCEMENT 
Regent Ron Banks, Chair
Regent Karen Bearden
Regent Syamala Reddy 
Regent Roger Reynolds

FINANCE AND 
ADMINISTRATION 
Regent Mindy Barfield, Chair 
Regent Elaine Farris 
Regent Derrick Gilmore 
Regent Dalton Jentzen 

ENROLLMENT MANAGEMENT 
AND STUDENT ENGAGEMENT
Regent Elaine Farris, Chair 
Regent Karen Bearden
Regent Michael Weaver
Regent Paul Harnice

GOVERNANCE
Regent Paul Harnice, Chair 
Regent Elaine Farris
Regent Derrick Gilmore
Regent Syamala Reddy

EXECUTIVE
Regent Elaine Farris, Chair 
Regent Ron Banks
Regent Mindy Barfield 
Regent Paul Harnice
Regent Dalton Jantzen 
Regent Roger Reynolds 
Regent Karen Bearden, Past Chair 

Page 6 of 433



KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY BOARD OF REGENTS 
 

Quarterly Meeting of the Board of Regents 
 

Thursday, December 6, 2018, 1:00 p.m. 
Board of Regents Room 

2nd Floor Julian M. Carroll Academic Services Building 
Frankfort, Kentucky  40601 

 

 
MEETING AGENDA 

 
1.  Call to Order       Regent Elaine Farris,  

Chair, Board of Regents 
 
2.  Roll Call        President M. Christopher Brown II 

Board Secretary  
 
3.  Adoption of the Agenda     Regent Elaine Farris 
 
4.  Opening Remarks       Regent Elaine Farris 
 
5.  Approval of Minutes      Regent Elaine Farris  

* Minutes of the September 6, 2018  
  Annual Retreat of the Board of Regents 
* Minutes of the September 6, 2018  
 Quarterly Meeting of the Board of Regents 

 
6.  President’s Quarterly Report    President M. Christopher Brown II 
 
7.  Discussion Agenda  
 

A.  Academic Affairs      Regent Dalton Jantzen 
1.  Action Items 

a.  Approval of Honorary Degree Candidates 
b.  Approval of Resolution to Confer Earned Academic Degrees 
c.  Approval of Revised Academic Structure 

 
2.  Information Items 

a.  Academic Program Accreditation Initiative Update 
b.  Southern Association of Colleges and Schools Commission  

on Colleges Update 
c. Update on Fall 2018 Midterms Grades 

 
B.  Brand Identity and      Regent Roger Reynolds 
      University Relations 

1.  Information Items 
a.  Alumni Relations Survey Update 
b.  Campus Website Update 
c.  Quarterly Media and Brand Identity Report   
d.  Thorobreds of the Month Update 

 

Page 7 of 433



  

C.  Finance and Administration   Regent Mindy Barfield  
1.  Action Items 

a.  Approval of Customer Relationship Management (CRM) Contract 
b.  Approval of Easements for Pinsley Trail 
c.  Approval of Enrollment Management Contract 
d.  Approval of FY2018 Audit 
e.  Authorization to Name the Campus Clock Tower 
f.  Authorization to Name the Pedway 

 
2.  Information Items 

a.  Mid-year Budget Update 
b.  Quarterly Review of Campus Facilities and Priorities 
c.  Section 119 of the Internal Revenue Code 

 
D.  Governance      Regent Paul Harnice 

1.  Action Items 
a.  Approval of Authorization for Policies 
b.  Approval to Terminate Pearson Agreement 

 
2.  Information Item 

a.  Draft Policy on Policies  
b.  Proposed 2019 Legislative Agenda  

 
E.  Institutional Advancement    Regent Ron Banks 

1.  Action Items 
a.  Approval of Donor Recognition Policy  
b.  Approval of Gift Acceptance Policy  

 
1.  Information Items 

a.  Annual Fifth Third Endowment Report 
b.  Annual Report of the Kentucky State University Foundation 

 
F.  Student Engagement and Success   Regent Elaine Farris  

1.  Information Items 
a.  Update on the Creation of The B.R.E.D.S. Center  

 
8.  Closed Session       Regent Elaine Farris 

A.  Pending Litigation (KRS 61.810 (1)(c)) 
B.  Individual Personnel Matters (KRS 61.810 (1)(f)) 

 
9.  Public Action(s)      Regent Elaine Farris 

A.  Approval of Administrative Appointments 
B.  Approval of Bennett Resolution 
C.  Authorization of Legal Action(s) or Settlement(s) 
 

10.  Campus Stakeholder Presentations (3 minutes each) 
A.  Faculty Senate Updates     Dr. Joe Moffett 
B.  Staff Senate Updates     Mr. Travis Haskins 
C.  Student Government Updates    Regent Michael Weaver 

 
11.  Closing Remarks      Regent Elaine Farris 
 

Page 8 of 433



  

12.  Adjournment                Regent Elaine Farris 
 

 
Kentucky State University Board of Regents  

2019 Quarterly Meeting Dates 
March 7-8, 2019 
June 6-7, 2019 

September 5-6, 2019 
December 5-6, 2019 

Page 9 of 433



 

 
 

KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY  
BOARD OF REGENTS 

ANNUAL RETREAT  
 

Thursday, September 6, 2018 
8:00 a.m. 

 

Harold R. Benson Research and Demonstration Farm 
1525 Mills Lane 

Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 
 

MINUTES 
******************* 

I. Breakfast and Conversation        
 
Office of the President    
 

II. Opening Remarks 
 
 Chairperson Dr. Elaine Farris   
 
III. Transforming KyStateU: A Campus Overview      
 
 Dr. M. Christopher Brown II, Eighteenth President 
 
IV. Board Governance: A SACSCOC Perspective          

 Dr. Dorothy Cowser Yancy 
 President Emeritus, Shaw University & Johnson C. Smith University 

VI.   Board Evaluations: Creating a New Baseline    

 Dr. Beverly Schneller, Vice Provost for Academic Affairs   

VIII. Lunch: Chat & Chew  
 
 President’s Council 

 
NO ACTION WAS TAKEN AT THIS MEETING.    
 
Submitted by: 
 
_______________________________     _______________________ 
Dr. M. Christopher Brown II, Board Secretary  Dr. Elaine Farris, Chair 
Kentucky State University     Kentucky State University 
Board of Regents      Board of Regents  
 
       
_____    Approved with no corrections  
 
_____    Approved with corrections  

Page 10 of 433



 

Page 1 of 5 
 

KENTUCKY STATE UNIVERSITY  
BOARD OF REGENTS 

QUARTERLY MEETING 
 

Thursday, September 6, 2018 
1:00 p.m. 

 

Harold R. Benson Research and Demonstration Farm 
1525 Mills Lane 

Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 
 

MINUTES 
******************** 

 
I. Call to Order   
  
 Chairperson Elaine Farris, Ed.D. called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. 
 
II. Roll Call 
 
 President M. Christopher Brown II, Ph.D. conducted roll call: 
 
 Regent Ron Banks      Present 
 Regent Mindy Barfield, Esq.     Present 
 Regent Karen Bearden, Ph.D.     Absent   
 Regent Michael Weaver, Jr.     Present  
 Regent Elaine Farris, Ed.D.     Present 
 Regent Derrick Gilmore     Present 
 Regent Paul Harnice, Esq.     Present 
 Regent Dalton Jantzen     Present 
 Regent Elgie McFayden, Ph.D.    Present 
 Regent Syamala H. K. Reddy, M.D.    Absent  
 Regent Roger Reynolds     Present 
 
 Chairperson Farris stated that Regent Reddy informed her that he would be out of 
 the country and that he requested that his absence be excused.    
  
 Nine (9) Regents were in attendance; a quorum was established.  
 
III. Adoption of the Agenda 

 Chairperson Farris clarified that there were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
  
 MOTION by Regent McFayden:  
 Move the Board to adopt the September 2018 Quarterly Meeting Agenda.   
 Seconded by Regent Harnice and passed without dissent. 

IV. Opening Remarks 
 
 Chairperson Farris gave her opening remarks.   
 

Page 11 of 433



  

Page 2 of 5 
 

V. Statutory Board Actions    
  
 A. Swearing in of Regent Roger Reynolds 
  Mr. Roger Reynolds was sworn in as a member of the Kentucky State University  
  Board of Regents.  
  
 B. Election of 2018-2019 Board Officers 

  MOTION by Regent Reynolds:  
  Move the Board to nominate the current slate of officers for 2018-2019.   (Board  
  Chair – Elaine Farris, Dalton Jantzen – Vice-Chair, M. Christopher Brown II,  
  Board Secretary).      
  Seconded by Regent McFayden and passed without dissent. 
 
  MOTION by Regent McFayden:  

  Move the Board to appoint Douglas Allen, CFO and Vice President of Finance and 
  Business Affairs, as Treasurer of the Kentucky State University Board of Regents.   
  Seconded by Regent Weaver and passed without dissent. 

 C. Signing of Annual Legal Documents 
Each Regent signed the annual legal documents, specifically the Kentucky State 
University Board of Regents Conflict of Interest Certification and Disclosure of 
Conflict of Interest, the Kentucky State University Board of Regents Confidentiality 
Agreement, and the Office of Attorney General’s Proof of Receipt of “Your Duty 
Under Law” and “Managing Government Records.”    

  
VI. President’s Quarterly Report   

 President Brown presented his Quarterly Report.   

VII. Consent Agenda 

A.  Approval of Atwood Renovation 
B.  Approval of Budget Increase for Hunter Hall Renovation 
C.  Approval of Budget Increase for The Halls Renovation 
D.  Approval of Blackboard Contract 
E.  Approval of Clear Bag Policy 
F.  Approval of Faculty Tenure for New Hires 
G.  Approval of Kentucky Heritage Land Conservation Fund Acquisition 
H.  Approval of Minutes of the July 19, 2018 Special Meeting of the Board of Regents 
I.  Approval of Request for Unpaid Leave for Dr. Tamara Sluss 
J.  Approval of University Bell Tower Project 
K.  Rescind Faculty Tenure for Dr. Tameka Winston 
 

 MOTION by Regent McFayden:  
 Move to approve the Consent Agenda Items with a correction to the minutes to state 
 “July 19, 2018” instead of “June 19, 2018.”   
 Seconded by Regent Reynolds and passed without dissent. 

 

 

 

Page 12 of 433



  

Page 3 of 5 
 

VIII.   Committee Areas   

A. Academic Affairs    
 
1. Action Item: 

 
a.   Approval of The Center for Research on the Eradication of 

 Educational Disparities (C.R.E.E.D Center)  
 
 MOTION by Regent McFayden:  

    Move to approve The Center for Research on the Eradication of  
    Educational Disparities (C.R.E.E.D Center)   
    Seconded by Regent Reynolds and passed without dissent. 
 
  2. Information Item:   
  
   a. Southern Association of Colleges and Schools Commission 
    on Colleges (SACSCOC) Update 
 
    President Brown gave an update on the SACSCOC written   
    submission.    

B. Brand Identity and University Relations     
 

  Dr. Brown presented the updates prepared by Ms. Clara Ross Stamps, VP of Brand
  Identity and University Relations, regarding the 2018 Homecoming Schedule, the 
  Alumni Relations Survey, and the Quarterly Media and Brand Identity Report.   

 C. Enrollment Management and Student Engagement   

  Dr. Brown gave the updates on the Fall 2018 Enrollment Report, the Fall 2018  
  Persistence and Retention Report, and the Fall 2018 House Update.   

  Dr. Jeffrey Burgin, Acting Vice President for Enrollment Management and    
 Student Engagement, recognized the outgoing Student Government Association 
 President, Onaje Cunningham.  Dr. Burgin also introduced the 2018-2019 Student 
 Government Association Executive Board:  Michael Weaver, President; Alexis 
 Anderson, First Vice President; Cheryll Eskridge, Second Vice President; Tia 
 Taylor, Secretary; Sydnie Miller, Treasurer; Mikal Muhammad, Chief Justice; 
 Cierra Couch, Miss KSU; Trevor Stephens, Mr. KSU; and Brianna Patterson, Chief 
 of Staff.    

   
 D. Finance and Administration    
 
  Vice President Douglas Allen presented the Quarterly Review of Campus Facilities 
  and Priorities.   
 
 E. Governance  
 
  1. Action Items   
 
 
 

Page 13 of 433



  

Page 4 of 5 
 

   a. Approval of Board Self-Evaluation Policy 
 
    MOTION by Regent Banks:  
    Move to approve the Board Self-Evaluation Policy.   
    Seconded by Regent Gilmore and passed without dissent. 

   b. Approval of Open Records Policy 
 
    MOTION by Regent Banks:  
    Move to approve the Open Records Policy.   
    Seconded by Regent Farris and passed without dissent. 

 F. Institutional Advancement   
 
 Ms. Wendy Kobler, Vice President for Institutional Advancement,  introduced her 

staff: Mary Jackson, Advance Services Coordinator; Diamond Ivey, Student 
Employee; Wendell Thomas, Special Assistant to the Vice President; Sean Ross, 
Director of Major Gifts; Alison Jackson, Executive Assistant; and Michael 
DeCourcy, Director of Annual Fund and Analytics.   

 
 Chairperson Farris requested consent from the Board to include the Annual Report 

and Audit from the Kentucky State University Foundation at the December 
meeting.   

   
IX.   Closed Session   

 MOTION by Regent Barfield:  
 Move to go into Closed Session to discuss personnel matters and pending litigation 
 pursuant to KRS 61.810 (Kentucky Open Meetings Act).   
 Seconded by Regent Reynolds and passed without dissent. 
 
X. Open Session  

MOTION by Regent McFayden:  
Move the Board to reconvene in General Session.   
Seconded by Regent Reynolds and passed without dissent. 

XI. Public Actions   
 
A. Personnel Action 

 
 MOTION by Regent Barfield:  

 Move the Board to approve the outside audit firm contract to provide   
  the internal audit functions.   

 Seconded by Regent Harnice and passed without dissent. 
 
B. Approval of Legal Action(s) or Settlement(s) 

 
 MOTION by Regent McFayden:  

 Move the Board to approve the Fox settlement agreement.   
 Seconded by Regent Reynolds and passed without dissent. 
 
 

Page 14 of 433



  

Page 5 of 5 
 

C. Approval of AY2019 Presidential Performance Baselines  
 
 MOTION by Regent Barfield:  

 Move the Board to approve President Brown’s AY2019 Presidential Performance  
  Baselines.   

 Seconded by Regent Reynolds and passed without dissent. 
 

XII. Campus Stakeholder Presentations (3 minutes each) 
 
 A.  Dr. Joe Moffett presented the Faculty Senate Updates.    
 B.  Regent Michael Weaver presented the Student Government Updates.   
 C. Mr. Travis Haskins presented the Staff Senate Updates.    
 
XIII. Closing Remarks   
 
 The next Quarterly Meeting is scheduled for December 6-7, 2018.   
 

XIV. Adjournment  
 

MOTION by Regent McFayden:  
Move the Board to adjourn at 3:12 p.m.   
Seconded by Regent Harnice and passed without dissent. 

 
.    
 
Submitted by: 
 
 
_______________________________     _______________________ 
Dr. M. Christopher Brown II, Board Secretary  Dr. Elaine Farris, Chair 
Kentucky State University     Kentucky State University 
Board of Regents      Board of Regents  
 
       
_____    Approved with no corrections  
 
_____    Approved with corrections  

Page 15 of 433



	
	

PRESIDENT’S	QUARTERLY	REPORT	
-	December	2018	-	

	
	
	
PEOPLE	

• Twany	Beckham,	Director	of	the	Exum	Center	and	Campus	Wellness	
• Christina	Jones,	Director	of	Title	III	
• John	L.	Smith,	Head	Football	Coach	

	
	
PERFORMANCE	

• HB303	–	Management	Improvement	Plan	Submission	
• Project	Completion	Initiative	2.0	(e.g.,	Credit	for	Life)	
• The	BRED	Experience	Fall	2018	Review	
• Upward	Bound	Program	STEM	Expansion	

	
	
PHYSICAL	PLANT	

• Boiler	function,	history,	and	issues	(circa	2010/2012)	
• Douglas	&	Langford	easement	project	ongoing	(Spring	2019)	
• Main	Street	Pedway	completion	target	date	(Early	2019)	

	
	
PLANNING	

• SB	153	–	Postsecondary	Education	Performance	Fund	for	distribution	through	the	Council	
on	Postsecondary	Education	(working	group	must	be	established	for	triennial	evaluation)	

• Southern	Association	of	Colleges	and	Schools	Commission	on	Colleges	(SACSCOC)	visit	
March	12-14,	2019	

• Strategic	Plan	Updates	and	Revisions	Task	Force	
	
	
POLICIES	

• Clear	Bag	Policy	Update	
• Higher	Education	Opportunity	Act	of	2010	–	Textbook	Information	
• KSU	Policy	and	Procedures	Cataloging	Initiative	
• New	campus	Work	Space	Policy	

	

Page 16 of 433



	
PROCESSES	

• Banner	Upgrades	–	Cloud-based	integration	
• Interfolio	–	Faculty	Profiles,	Reviews,	and	Dossiers	
• Managerial	Performance	Assessments	Completed	
• Personnel	Vacancy	and	Action	Forms	Update	

	
	
PROFITS	

• Challenge	of	unbudgeted	NGE	litigation	resolution(s)	
• Cost	of	Living	Salary	Supplement	for	AY2019	distributed	
• USDA	Waiver	Request	for	1890	Extension	and	Evans-Allen	Research	funds	

	
	
PROJECTS	

• Faculty	and	Student	Handbook	Revisions	(e.g.,	Emotional	Support	Animals)	
• Green	Ribbon	Commission	on	Academic	Prioritization	and	Budget	Alignment	2.0	–	Chaired	

by	Dr.	Patricia	Higgins	and	Co-Chaired	by	Dr.	Beverly	Schneller	
• Honor	Society	Chartering	Initiative	
• Inaugural	President’s	Award	Recipients	
• KSU	Cares	Customer	Service	Initiative	Design	Phase	

	
	
PUBLICATIONS	

• AGB	Board	of	Directors’	Statement	on	Governing	Boards’	Responsibilities	for	
Intercollegiate	Athletics	

• An	Anatomy	of	Good	Board	Governance	in	Higher	Education	
	
	
PUBLIC	EVENTS	

• December	13th	–	Baccalaureate	(11:00	am)	
• December	14th	–	Winter	Commencement	(9:00	am)	
• January	7th	–	Spring	2019	Encampment		(8:00	am)	
• January	22nd	–	Martin	Luther	King	Assembly	(11:00	am)	
• February	7th	–	Heritage	Assembly	(11:00	am)	

	
	
POTPOURRI	

• CPE	Stronger	by	Degrees	Presentation	–	November	15,	2018	
• Governor’s	Postsecondary	Education	Summit	–	December	18,	2018	
• Annual	Anna	Mac	Clarke	Veterans	Recognition	Assembly	

Page 17 of 433



Page 18 of 433



Page 19 of 433



Page 20 of 433



Page 21 of 433



Page 22 of 433



Page 23 of 433



Page 24 of 433



Page 25 of 433



Page 26 of 433



Page 27 of 433



Page 28 of 433



Page 29 of 433



Page 30 of 433



Page 31 of 433



Page 32 of 433



Page 33 of 433



Page 34 of 433



Page 35 of 433



Page 36 of 433



Page 37 of 433



Page 38 of 433



Page 39 of 433



Page 40 of 433



Page 41 of 433



Page 42 of 433



Page 43 of 433



Page 44 of 433



Page 45 of 433



 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:    December 6, 2018      

SUBJECT:   Individual Program Accreditation Information Update  

FROM:   Academic Affairs      

INFORMATION:   Kentucky State University program accreditation review. 

 

BACKGROUND:  As part of a comprehensive effort at institutional quality enhancement, 
all programs that have individual accrediting agencies or related certification bodies 
should determine eligibility requirements to achieve accreditation by field or discipline-
specific bodies, and then, move ahead on a timeline to achieve programmatic 
accreditation within the earliest feasible cycle.  
 
SUMMARY OF PROGRAMS/ACTIVITIES:  The Office of Academic Affairs has reviewed 
the current list of academic programs and identified appropriate accrediting agencies for 
eight (8) degree areas.  The majority of the programs would be applying for ABET and 
AACSB as the degrees are housed the College of Business and Computational Sciences. 
Deans and Chairs have provided feedback and are in agreement to move ahead with the 
accreditation efforts which appear achievable by 2020-21.  
 
ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC GOALS:   
 
Goal #5 Obtain Maximum Institutional Effectiveness through the Implementation of a 
Continuous Quality Improvement Process framed within the seven Baldrige Performance 
Excellence in Education criteria. 
 
COMMITTEE/PROGRAM ACTION:  None at this point 
 
PROGRAM IMPLICATIONS:  N/A. 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  To be determined. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  An Excel Spreadsheet accompanies this item for reference and 
informational purposes.  
 

Page 46 of 433



 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:    December 6, 2018  
 
SUBJECT:   Southern Association on Colleges and Schools/Commission on 

Colleges (SACSCOC) Decennial Review Update  
 
FROM:   Academic Affairs  
 
ACTION ITEM:   Information only  
  

  

BACKGROUND:  In March 2019, Kentucky State University will have its on-site review for 

reaccreditation by SACSCOC.    
  

SUMMARY OF PROGRAMS/ACTIVITIES:  The Off-Site Review Report will be available 

before the end of the academic year. At this time, the SACSCOC KSU Committee is creating the 

files for the Evidence Room and planning the Encampment 2019 program which will be focused 

on preparing the campus for the site visit.   
  

(As of this writing the Off-Site Report has not been received, but by the time of the Board 
meeting additional information may be available to share at the meeting.)   
  

ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC GOALS:  This meets the goals of maintaining high quality 

liberal arts programming and providing a means to increase enrollment, as external stakeholders 

respond favorably to accredited programs.   
  

COMMITTEE/PROGRAM ACTION:  None at this point  
  

PROGRAM IMPLICATIONS:  Successful reaffirmation is an institutional goal.   
  

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: N/A  
  

ATTACHMENTS:  N/A  
  

RECOMMENDATION:  N/A   
 

Page 47 of 433



 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:   December 6, 2018      

SUBJECT: Fall 2018 Midterm Grades 

FROM:   Academic Affairs    

ACTION ITEM:  Information Only 

 

 

BACKGROUND:  Each semester at mid-term, an evaluation of grades should be 
considered.  This year was no exception.  An examination of the DFW Report was 
conducted and information was shared with Deans and Chairs for consultation and 
action. 
 
SUMMARY OF PROGRAMS/ACTIVITIES:  Close examinations of serial offenders 
 

ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC GOALS:  Goal #2—Achieve Academic Excellence 
Across all Programs and Colleges, Increase Student General Education Skills, Degree 
Persistence, Career Readiness as Graduation Rates 
 
COMMITTEE/PROGRAM ACTION:  N/A 
 
PROGRAM IMPLICATIONS:  Need to use our early alert system for early interventions 
with students to avoid these grades. 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Continue to monitor the academic success and progress of all 
students. 

Page 48 of 433



	

	

	

	

 
DATE:  December 6, 2018 

SUBJECT:  Alumni Relations Survey  

FROM:  Division of Brand Identity and University Relations  

ACTION ITEM: No 

 
 

BACKGROUND: The Alumni Relations Survey is being conducted to determine the 
degree to which our stakeholders connect to our brand position and feel value for 
Kentucky State University. It is now time to take a confident step forward. Getting there 
means positioning our brand in a bold way. There are many ways to share the Kentucky State 
University story, and communicating the right message to the right audience at the right time is 
critical to advancing our brand reputation and profile.  

SUMMARY OF PROGRAMS/ACTIVITIES: The survey is posted at www.kysu.edu, shared via 
email and social media in order to give ample opportunity for a wider audience to participate.  

ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC GOALS: It is our goal to position Kentucky State 
University among the nation’s most visible post-secondary institutions and as an 
effective force for progress in the Commonwealth of Kentucky, working collaboratively 
and efficiently to boast its position of providing the highest quality education for the 
highest return on investment while improving the quality of life and driving economic 
growth in the Commonwealth.  

COMMITTEE/PROGRAM ACTION: None required. 

PROGRAM IMPLICATIONS: While the Kentucky State University brand has served us 
well over the years, it is time to create a new, bold brand that represents our commitment 
to academic excellence and our promise to address the special needs of the 
Commonwealth and its citizens. By analyzing the survey results, Kentucky State 
University will now be able to conduct focus group discussions with specific constituency 
groups.  

 FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: None 

ATTACHMENTS:  Survey attached. 

RECOMMENDATION: If you are interested in participating in one of the upcoming focus 
group discussions, please email news@kysu.edu. 

Page 49 of 433



	

	

	

	

 
DATE:  December 6, 2018 

SUBJECT:  Website Update   

FROM:  Brand Identity and University Relations  

ACTION ITEM: No  

 
 

BACKGROUND: Why conduct a website redesign? The reasons are often too many to 
name. Here are the top reasons mentioned by our stakeholders: the CMS (Content 
Management System is a pain; the CMS and the CRM (Content Relationship 
Management) do not work in concert; the current design is outdated; inconsistent page 
styles; the website is not responsive and mobile friendly; site needs more videos and 
larger photos; too much content; content managers do not keep content up-to-date, 
among others. 

SUMMARY OF PROGRAMS/ACTIVITIES: Our website goals must be measurable and 
align with one of three broad categories: to increase revenue, decrease expense and 
increase brand recognition. 

Brand Identity is working to identify all audiences while defining our primary audience. 
Content managers must understand their responsibility to our audiences and the 
importance of updating content while measuring goal attainment. A website is never 
complete or up-to-date. We must invest in content —copy, photography, and 
videography.  

The University’s homepage and standard templates are being redesigned to meet the 
demands of the mobile age. The new templates will have a modern design, streamlined 
content and improved usability. Best of all, the website will be responsive and mobile 
friendly. 

Brand Identity is working with an outside agency to bring current best practices to the 
University’s online presence. The new look will debut in February 2019.  

	

	

	

Page 50 of 433



	

 

	

 

 

ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC GOALS: It is our goal to position Kentucky State 
University among the nation’s most visible postsecondary institutions and as an effective 
force for progress in the Commonwealth of Kentucky, working collaboratively and 
efficiently to boast its position of providing the highest quality education for the highest 
return on investment while improving the quality of life and driving economic growth in 
the Commonwealth.  

COMMITTEE/PROGRAM ACTION: No. 

PROGRAM IMPLICATIONS: The new website will assist the institution in achieving its 
business goals and mission by increasing web traffic, influencing potential students to 
take action — complete applications or schedule a campus visit — while keeping web 
visitors informed of the great happenings at Kentucky State University.  

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: $28,000  

RECOMMENDATION: N/A  

	

Page 51 of 433



	

	

	

	

 
DATE:  December 6, 2018 

SUBJECT:  Quarterly Media and Brand Identity Report  

FROM:  Brand Identity and University Relations   

ACTION ITEM: No 

 
 

BACKGROUND: The Quarterly Media and Brand Identity Report reveals insights into the 
brand reputation and position of Kentucky State University in the news and among its 
publics.     

SUMMARY OF PROGRAMS/ACTIVITIES: Brand Identity creates content and support 
University programs and activities to promote, increase, advance and monitor the brand 
reputation of Kentucky State University while strengthening broad public and internal 
support of the institution.  

ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC GOALS: It is our goal to position Kentucky State 
University among the nation’s most visible post-secondary institutions and as an effective 
force for progress in the Commonwealth of Kentucky, working collaboratively and 
efficiently to boast its position of providing the highest quality education for the highest 
return on investment while improving the quality of life and driving economic growth in 
the Commonwealth.  

COMMITTEE/PROGRAM ACTION: None required. 

PROGRAM IMPLICATIONS: By establishing and monitoring strategic communications 
targeted to specific constituency groups, we will be able to advance and increase the brand 
position and reputation of Kentucky State University.   

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: The total quarterly value of Kentucky State University’s free 
media and brand efforts is $3.5 million. 

ATTACHMENTS:  Report attached. 

RECOMMENDATION: Please continue to share news, media and branding strategies 
with the Division of Brand Identity and University Relations via news@kysu.edu.  

	

Page 52 of 433



DECEMBER 2018 SYNOPSIS
KENTUCKY STATE BRAND IDENTITY

PRINT
DESIGN

BANNERS
VIDEO

SOCIAL
MEDIA

WEB
DESIGN

COPY
WRITING/
EDITING

UNIVERSITY 
MENTIONS

UNIVERSITY 
EVENTS

PHOTOGRAPHY

544 31 40 159 362 23 30 15 710

Page 53 of 433



SOCIAL MEDIA

Page Likes: 8,762
Posts: 71

Post Engagements: 26,008
Total Reach: 58,369
Video Views: 26,183

Most Liked Post: 
Halftime Performance : Mighty Marching Tho-
robreds : Director of Bands Alvin Level #Go-
Breds #GetYourGreenOn

1,338 Reactions, 
Comments & Shares

2,929 Followers
Photos: 114

Most Interaction: #Repost @kysuath-
letics#GetYourGreenOn • Having fun in 
Alumni Stadium!
356 Likes
 

Videos: 3
Most Viewed (28): Get Your Green On

Photos: 31
Most Viewed (20): President Brown recognizes 
former Student Regent Onaje Cunningham.  

4,339 Followers
Tweets: 126

 
Top Tweet: In the 2019 U.S. News & World 
Report rankings, @KyStateU leaped into 
the top-25 of historically black colleges 
and universities (HBCUs) category. Ranked 
22nd, the University climbed 16 spots 
from last year, when it ranked 38th. kysu.
edu/2018/09/10/ken… #KSUForward pic.
twitter.com/1aKIHg5HRt
 

4,916 Impressions
412 Total Engagements

126 Media Engagements
96 Detail Expands

90 Likes
42 Retweets

32 Link Clicks
17 Profile Clicks
5 Hashtag Clicks

3 Replies
2 Follows

WEBSITE Users: 112,938
Page Views: 768,121

Page Sessions: 2.56
Avg. Session Duration: 3:05

Bounce Rate: 45.85%
New Sessions 77.8%Sessions: 299,896

NEW RETURNING

VISITORSDEVICE ENGAGEMENT

77.8%
104,095

22.2%
29,758

Top 10 Countries Sessions
 1. Kentucky              187,867
 2. Georgia                 18,231
 3. Illinois                    15,594
 4. Tennessee           11,902
 5. Ohio                       8,864
 6. Michigan               5,758
 7. Indiana                  5,065
 8. Texas                      3,295
 9. California             2,823
 10. Virginia                  2,502

Top 10 Cities Sessions
 1. Frankfort              124,965
 2. Lexington             17,878
 3. Louisville              17,708
 4. Atlanta                  15,188
 5. Chicago  12,787
 6. Nashville               9,099
 7. Nicholasville      2,666
 8. Detroit                  2,473
 9. Indianapolis         2,324
10. New York              2,190

DEMOGRAPHICS

Tablet
8,414

Mobile
109,296

36.44% 
60.75% 

2.81% 

Desktop
182,186

Page 54 of 433



	

	

	

	

 
DATE:  December 6, 2018 

SUBJECT:  The Thorobred Program: Recognizing Brand Champions  

FROM:  Brand Identity and University Relations  

ACTION ITEM: No  

 
 

BACKGROUND: Strategic employee recognition fuels an environment that inspires new 
ideas and gives its communities victories to celebrate. At Kentucky State University, 
when an employee or a team achieves outstanding results — big or small — we must 
shine the spotlight on brand champions and their great work — the big finish with entry 
into the Winner’s Circle.  

SUMMARY OF PROGRAMS/ACTIVITIES: Our goal is to build a culture that thrives 
and understands the relationship between great customer experiences and Kentucky 
State University’s brand reputation. The program aims to encourage constant workplace 
improvements, including evaluation of processes, work flow, communication, and ways 
to inspire enthusiasm for victories in the hearts of our employees, believing true success 
happens from the inside out.  

The campus community and others will be encouraged to nominate employees who 
deserve special recognition for going above and beyond the call of duty to impact the 
customer experience while advancing the brand reputation of Kentucky State 
University. This program will recognize individuals whose service to the University 
provides exceptional benefits in the furtherance of the goals and mission of the 
institution.  

ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC GOALS: It is our goal to position Kentucky State 
University among the nation’s most visible post-secondary institutions and as an effective 
force for progress in the Commonwealth of Kentucky, working collaboratively and 
efficiently to boast its position of providing the highest quality education for the highest 
return on investment while improving the quality of life and driving economic growth in 
the Commonwealth.  

COMMITTEE/PROGRAM ACTION: No. 

 

Page 55 of 433



	

 

 

 

 

 

PROGRAM IMPLICATIONS: The Thorobred Program will increase employee morale 
and aid in the advancement of Kentucky State University’s brand position and 
reputation while recognizing individuals whose service to the University provides 
exceptional benefits in the furtherance of the goals and mission of the institution.  

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: Minor  

RECOMMENDATION: N/A  

	

Page 56 of 433



Page 57 of 433



Page 58 of 433



Page 59 of 433



Page 60 of 433



Page 61 of 433



Page 62 of 433



Page 63 of 433



Page 64 of 433



Page 65 of 433



Page 66 of 433



Page 67 of 433



Page 68 of 433



Page 69 of 433



Page 70 of 433



Page 71 of 433



Page 72 of 433



Page 73 of 433



Page 74 of 433



Page 75 of 433



Page 76 of 433



Page 77 of 433



Page 78 of 433



Page 79 of 433



Page 80 of 433



Page 81 of 433



Page 82 of 433



Page 83 of 433



Page 84 of 433



Page 85 of 433



Page 86 of 433



Page 87 of 433



Page 88 of 433



Page 89 of 433



Page 90 of 433



Page 91 of 433



Page 92 of 433



Page 93 of 433



Page 94 of 433



Page 95 of 433



Page 96 of 433



Page 97 of 433



Page 98 of 433



Page 99 of 433



Page 100 of 433



Page 101 of 433



Page 102 of 433



Page 103 of 433



Page 104 of 433



Page 105 of 433



Page 106 of 433



Page 107 of 433



Page 108 of 433



Page 109 of 433



Page 110 of 433



Page 111 of 433



Page 112 of 433



Page 113 of 433



Page 114 of 433



Page 115 of 433



Page 116 of 433



Page 117 of 433



Page 118 of 433



Page 119 of 433



Page 120 of 433



Page 121 of 433



Page 122 of 433



Page 123 of 433



Page 124 of 433



Page 125 of 433



Page 126 of 433



Page 127 of 433



Page 128 of 433



Page 129 of 433



Page 130 of 433



Page 131 of 433



Page 132 of 433



Page 133 of 433



Page 134 of 433



Page 135 of 433



Page 136 of 433



Page 137 of 433



Page 138 of 433



Page 139 of 433



Page 140 of 433



Page 141 of 433



Page 142 of 433



Page 143 of 433



Page 144 of 433



Page 145 of 433



Page 146 of 433



Page 147 of 433



Page 148 of 433



Page 149 of 433



Page 150 of 433



Page 151 of 433



Page 152 of 433



Page 153 of 433



Page 154 of 433



Page 155 of 433



Page 156 of 433



Page 157 of 433



Page 158 of 433



Page 159 of 433



Page 160 of 433



Page 161 of 433



Page 162 of 433



Page 163 of 433



Page 164 of 433



Page 165 of 433



Page 166 of 433



Page 167 of 433



Page 168 of 433



Page 169 of 433



Page 170 of 433



Page 171 of 433



Page 172 of 433



Page 173 of 433



Page 174 of 433



Page 175 of 433



Page 176 of 433



Page 177 of 433



Page 178 of 433



Page 179 of 433



Page 180 of 433



Page 181 of 433



Page 182 of 433



Page 183 of 433



Page 184 of 433



Page 185 of 433



Page 186 of 433



Page 187 of 433



Page 188 of 433



Page 189 of 433



Page 190 of 433



Page 191 of 433



Page 192 of 433



Page 193 of 433



Page 194 of 433



Page 195 of 433



Page 196 of 433



Page 197 of 433



Page 198 of 433



Page 199 of 433



Page 200 of 433



Page 201 of 433



Page 202 of 433



Page 203 of 433



Page 204 of 433



Page 205 of 433



Page 206 of 433



Page 207 of 433



Page 208 of 433



Page 209 of 433



Page 210 of 433



Page 211 of 433



Page 212 of 433



Page 213 of 433



Page 214 of 433



Page 215 of 433



Page 216 of 433



Page 217 of 433



Page 218 of 433



Page 219 of 433



Page 220 of 433



Page 221 of 433



Page 222 of 433



Page 223 of 433



Page 224 of 433



Page 225 of 433



Page 226 of 433



Page 227 of 433



Page 228 of 433



Page 229 of 433



Page 230 of 433



Page 231 of 433



Page 232 of 433



Page 233 of 433



Page 234 of 433



Page 235 of 433



Page 236 of 433



Page 237 of 433



Page 238 of 433



Page 239 of 433



Page 240 of 433



Page 241 of 433



Page 242 of 433



Page 243 of 433



Page 244 of 433



Page 245 of 433



Page 246 of 433



Page 247 of 433



Page 248 of 433



Page 249 of 433



Page 250 of 433



Page 251 of 433



Page 252 of 433



Page 253 of 433



Page 254 of 433



Page 255 of 433



Page 256 of 433



Page 257 of 433



Page 258 of 433



Page 259 of 433



Page 260 of 433



Page 261 of 433



Page 262 of 433



Page 263 of 433



Page 264 of 433



Page 265 of 433



Page 266 of 433



Page 267 of 433



Page 268 of 433



Page 269 of 433



Page 270 of 433



Page 271 of 433



Page 272 of 433



Page 273 of 433



Page 274 of 433



Page 275 of 433



Page 276 of 433



Page 277 of 433



Page 278 of 433



Page 279 of 433



Page 280 of 433



Page 281 of 433



Page 282 of 433



Page 283 of 433



Page 284 of 433



Page 285 of 433



Page 286 of 433



Page 287 of 433



Page 288 of 433



Page 289 of 433



Page 290 of 433



Page 291 of 433



Page 292 of 433



Page 293 of 433



Page 294 of 433



Page 295 of 433



Page 296 of 433



Page 297 of 433



Page 298 of 433



Page 299 of 433



Page 300 of 433



Page 301 of 433



Page 302 of 433



Page 303 of 433



Page 304 of 433



Page 305 of 433



Page 306 of 433



Page 307 of 433



Page 308 of 433



Page 309 of 433



Page 310 of 433



Page 311 of 433



Page 312 of 433



Page 313 of 433



Page 314 of 433



Page 315 of 433



Page 316 of 433



Page 317 of 433



Page 318 of 433



Page 319 of 433



Page 320 of 433



Page 321 of 433



Page 322 of 433



Page 323 of 433



Page 324 of 433



Page 325 of 433



Page 326 of 433



Page 327 of 433



Page 328 of 433



Page 329 of 433



 

 

 

 

 

DATE:   December 6, 2018 

SUBJECT:   First Quarter Budget Update 

FROM: Office of Finance and Administration 

ACTION ITEM:  Information Item Only  

 

 

BACKGROUND: The Board of Regents approved the FY2019 budget on June 6, 2018.  

SUMMARY OF PROGRAMS/ACTIVITIES:  

Educational and operational functions are identified by functional classifications that 

include Instruction, Research, Public Service, Academic Support, Student Services, 

Institutional Support, Operations of Facilities, and Auxiliaries.  

ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC GOALS:   

Goal [1] Enhance Student Enrollment, Improve Student Life and Engagement, and 
Improve Student Advising and Career Development. 
 
Goal [2] Achieve Academic Excellence Across all Programs and Colleges, Increase 
Student General Education Skills, Degree Persistence, Career Readiness and 
Graduation Rates. 
 
Goal [3] Increase the University's Financial Strength and Operational Efficiency. 
 
Goal [4] Enhance the Impact of External Relations and Development. 
 
Goal [5] Obtain Maximum Institutional Effectiveness through the Implementation of 
a Continuous Quality Improvement Process framed within the seven 
Baldrige Performance Excellence in Education criteria. 
 

COMMITTEE/PROGRAM ACTION:  Not Applicable 

PROGRAM IMPLICATIONS: Not Applicable 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  The University is operating within the approved budget. 

 

Page 330 of 433



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  First Quarter Budget to Actual Report 

RECOMMENDATION:  Information Only 

 
 

 
 
REVENUES 

FY2018-19 
Approved 

Budget 

 
Actual as of 
9/30/2018 

 
 

Percent 

State Appropriation $25,459,000 $5,592,764  
Tuition and Mandatory Fees 15,960,000 7,013,675  
Auxiliary Enterprises 4,500,000 2,137,670  
Other Non-Operating Revenues 1,065,000 205,421  
Fund Balance - -  
    

TOTAL REVENUE $46,984,000 $14,949,530 31.82% 

    
EXPENDITURES    

Personnel $19,146,988 $5,245,103  
Fringe Benefits 6,642,688 2,155,694  
Operating Expenses 21,194,324 3,909,063  
    

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $46,984,000 $11,309,861 24.07% 

 

 

Page 331 of 433



 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:   December 6, 2018 

SUBJECT: Quarterly Facilities Report   

FROM: Finance and Administration 

ACTION ITEM:  No 

 

 

BACKGROUND:  Attached is the Quarterly Facilities Report. 

 

SUMMARY OF PROGRAMS/ACTIVITIES: N/A   

 

ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC GOALS:   

Goal 3: Increase the University’s Financial Strength and Operational Efficiency. 

COMMITTEE/PROGRAM ACTION:  N/A 

PROGRAM IMPLICATIONS:  N/A 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  N/A 

ATTACHMENTS:   

Quarterly Facilities Report.  

RECOMMENDATION:  Information Only 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 332 of 433



 

 

 

 

 

Kentucky State University 

Finance and Administration 

FACILITIES PROJECT UPDATES 

 

December 6, 2018 

State Funded Projects 

 Repair Boilers and Aging Distribution Lines – State Account Number – 

C756 

Scope of Work – Replace coal fired boilers with natural gas boilers and replace 

distribution lines. 

Appropriation - $10,400,000; Project cost to date - $10,300,000. 

Project complete – under warranty. Remaining project funds will be used by 

Division of Engineering and Contract Administration to address HVAC issues on 

campus and to demolish smokestack. 

 

 Pedestrian Bridge – State Account Number – 151064 

Scope of Work – Install pedestrian bridge across US 60. 

Appropriation (to Transportation Cabinet as part of Road Plan) - $8,200,000; 

Project cost to date - $5,100,000 (tentative, obtaining updated amount from 

Transportation Cabinet). 

Project complete. Certificate of occupancy received.  

Federally Funded Projects 

 Renovate Atwood Agricultural Research Building – State Account 

Number C751 

Scope of Work – Total renovation of building to create modern spaces for 

research, teaching and extension for land grant program. 

Federally approved project cost - $7,428,393.  

Initial design completed by OMNI Architects. RFP for initial demolition has been 

awarded. 

Estimated completion date – October 2019 

 

 Renovate Hunter Hall – State Account Number  - C8XM 

 

Page 333 of 433



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Scope of Work – Total renovation of building to create modern spaces for 

research, teaching and extension for land grant program. 

Federally approved project cost - $2,296,476 (Board approval of scope increase 

requested at September 6, 2018 meeting). 

Project is in design phase, Bernie Engleman with the Division of Engineering and 

Contract Administration has been assigned as project manager. 

Estimated completion date – December 2019 

 

 

 

 Site Work for Bell Tower – State Account – C96U 

Scope of Work – Site work wiring and foundation to erect the bell tower. 

Approved budget - $500,000. Current budget estimates are well below approved 

amount. Under $100,000 for site work at this time. 

Estimate completion date – March 2019 

 

University Funded Projects 

 Blazer Library Feasibility Study – State Account Number – C8K3 

Scope of Work – Develop cost estimate of renovations for Blazer Library. 

Design completed. Project to be closed once remaining encumbrances are 

cleared. 

 

 Mold Remediation and Mechanical Renovation – The Halls – State 

Account Number – C8XN 

Scope of Work – Remediate mold throughout the building and repair mechanical 

systems. Approved project budget - $900,000; Expended to date - $45,000. 

Mold remediation complete – July 2018. Mechanical repairs are more extensive 

than anticipated. CMTA Engineers are completing phase A design. Project 

Completion -5%. 

Estimated completion date – May 2019 

 

 Develop Campus Master Plan – State Account - C913 

Scope of Work – Develop campus master plan. Approved budget - $325,000. 

OMNI selected as architect selected. 

Page 334 of 433



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Estimated completion date – May 2019 

 

 Design Study for Shauntee Hall – State Account – C914 

Scope of Work – Develop cost estimate and initial design to convert Shauntee 

Hall to Nursing Education facility. Approved budget - $30,000. 

In Phase A design. 

Estimated completion date for design – January 2019 

 

 Campus Roof Evaluation and Repair – State Account – C915 

Scope of Work – Evaluate issues and develop repair estimates for campus 

buildings with roof problems. Evaluate alternative designs. Approved Budget - 

$50,000 

Ross Tarrant selected as architect, beginning design. 

Estimated completion date – March 2019 

 

 Emergency Generator Replacement – State Account – C916 

Scope of Work – Replace and reposition emergency generator. Approved budget - 

$300,000. 

Project in phase A design. 

Estimated completion date – March 2019 

 

 Install Signage and Lighting on Pedway – State Account – C95V 

Scope of Work – Design and install signage and lighting on the pedway that 

crosses US 60. Approved budget - $80,000. 

Project in phase A design. 

Estimated completion date – April 2019 

 

 Energy Performance Savings Contract – State Account – N/A 

Scope of Work – Develop project to reduce energy costs and improve efficiency. 

Project is funded from guaranteed savings. 

CMTA selected as contractor. CMTA currently completing energy audit. 

Estimated completion date – December 2020 

 

 Replace Exterior Stairs – Bell Gym – State Account – C96P 

Page 335 of 433



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Scope of Work – Replace exterior stairs. Budget $30,000. 

Project in phase A design. 

Estimated completion date – April 2019 

 

 Construct Softball Field – State Account – C96Q 

Scope of Work – Design on campus softball field, decision to proceed will be 

made after cost estimate. Budget $48,000. 

Estimated completion date – March 2019 

 

 Install Fountain – Student Center – State Account C96R 

Scope of Work – Wiring, piping and foundation work to install fountain in front 

of student center. Preliminary budget $10,000. 

Estimated completion date – March 2019 

 

 Install Pedestal – State Account – C96S 

Scope of Work – Install pedestal for statuary at end of ASB parking lot. 

Preliminary budget $10,000. 

Estimated completion date – March 2019 

 

 Mold Remediation – Exum Basement – State Account – C97F 

Scope of Work – Mold remediation. Project budget - $25,000. 

Estimated completion date – February 2019 

 

 Install Access Control – Hume Hall – State Account – C97Y 

Scope of Work – Wiring to install access control system at Hume Hall. 

Preliminary budget less than $10,000. 

 

 

Privately Funded Projects 

 Transition to Synthetic Athletic Field – State Account – N/A 

Scope of Work – Install a synthetic athletic field. 

Working with stakeholders to develop budget and potential cost sharing for the 

project.  

Estimated completion – April 1, 2019 

Page 336 of 433



 

 

 

 

 

DATE:   December 6, 2018 

SUBJECT:   Section 119 of the Internal Revenue Code 

FROM: Finance and Administration 

ACTION ITEM:  No 

 

 

BACKGROUND: Kentucky State University provides its University President with a 

personal residence.  Kentucky State University expects that the University President will 

reside in this personal residence.   Under the federal tax code, the IRS views this personal 

residence as a fringe benefit.  Under certain circumstances, the IRS excludes the personal 

residence provided to a college or university presidents from tax if three tests are met.   

After a 941 audit, it has been determined housing provided for Dr. M, Christopher Brown, 

II is a taxable fringe benefit under IRC 119 and do not meet all three tests.  Accordingly, 

Dr. Brown’s use of the personal residence on campus is considered taxable income.  In 

order to ensure that this fringe benefit has been appropriately accounted for, it has been 

recommended that Dr. Brown’s contract be amended. 

SUMMARY OF PROGRAMS/ACTIVITIES:  Dr Brown’s contract should be amended to 

reflect that his use of the personal residence on campus is considered income and that it 

will be taxed as such.  Additional non-substantive changes have also been made to reflect 

the Board’s approval of Dr. Brown’s contract at the September 2018 board meeting.  

ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC GOALS:   

Goal [3] Increase the University's Financial Strength and Operational Efficiency. 
 
COMMITTEE/PROGRAM ACTION:  Not Applicable. 
 
PROGRAM IMPLICATIONS: Not Applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  Not Applicable. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  None 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Not Applicable 

Page 337 of 433



Page 338 of 433



Page 339 of 433



Page 340 of 433



Page 341 of 433



Page 342 of 433



Page 343 of 433



Page 344 of 433



Page 345 of 433



 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:   December 6, 2018    

SUBJECT: Motion to Revise Kentucky State University Board of Regents 

Bylaws (“The Gold Book”), Section II, Powers, and Section X, 

The President of Kentucky State University.   

FROM:   Governance Committee     

ACTION ITEM: YES  

BACKGROUND:  Kentucky State University (University) acknowledges the statutory 
authority of its Board of Regents to adopt University bylaws (both academic and non-
academic) that govern the University. As stated in the University’s bylaws, it is the 
responsibility of the President, the administration, the faculty, and the staff to administer 
and implement these bylaws: 
 

Article II 
Powers 

 
Section 2: The Board of Regents, in governing the affairs of  
Kentucky State University shall: 
 

. . . . 
 
(k) Act as a policy-making body by adopting policy statements of 
governance and operation of the University, in areas, including, but not 
limited to, human resources, information technology, public relations and 
development;  
 
(l) Entrust the internal administration of the University to the President in 
accordance with the duly established governing Board Policies and 
administrative regulations; 

 
The University now seeks to revise its bylaws to make clear that the University President 
has the authority to oversee the development of system of policies and procedures 
necessary to manage routine operations of the University.    
 
SUMMARY OF PROGRAMS/ACTIVITIES:  The University is currently preparing for a 
reaffirmation visit from the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools Commission on 
Colleges’ (SACSCOC). Pursuant to SACSCOC’s newly adopted Principles of Accreditation: 

Page 346 of 433



Foundations for Quality Enhancement, Section 10, Standard 4(2)(b), a Governing Board 
must: 
 

[ensure] a clear and appropriate distinction between the policymaking 
function of the board and the responsibility of the administration and 
faculty to administer and implement policy. (Board/administrative 
distinction)  
 

The rationale behind the requirements for Section 10, Standard 4(2)(b), is outlined in the 
Resource Manual for the Principles of Accreditations, published in March 2018. The 
Resource Manual’s rationale and notes as it relates to Standard 4(2)(b) states as follows: 

 
Effective governance includes clearly defining the roles and responsibilities 
of the governing board, administration, and faculty and ensuring that each 
of these groups adheres to their appropriate roles and responsibilities. 
While it is important that the overall mission and overarching policies of the 
institution are approved by the board, the administration and 
implementation of the general direction set by the board are carried out by 
the administration and faculty in order to prevent the board from 
undercutting the authority of the president and other members of the 
administration and faculty, thereby creating an unhealthy and unworkable 
governance structure. 

 
As set forth above, effective governance requires that a governing board provide general 
direction to the University as to the roles and responsibilities of University groups.   
 
ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC GOALS:   
 
Goal #3 Increase the University's Financial Strength and Operational Efficiency 
Goal #5 Obtain Maximum Institutional Effectiveness through the Implementation of a 
Continuous Quality Improvement Process framed within the seven Baldrige Performance 
Excellence in Education criteria. 
 
COMMITTEE/PROGRAM ACTION:  N/A 
 
PROGRAM IMPLICATIONS:  N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  N/A 
 
ATTACHMENT:  See attached revisions to the University’s Bylaws. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve Motion to Revise University Bylaws (“The Gold Book”), 
Section II, Powers and Section X, President of Kentucky State University. 

Page 347 of 433



Page 348 of 433



Page 349 of 433



Page 350 of 433



Page 351 of 433



Page 352 of 433



Page 353 of 433



Page 354 of 433



Page 355 of 433



Page 356 of 433



Page 357 of 433



Page 358 of 433



Page 359 of 433



Page 360 of 433



Page 361 of 433



Page 362 of 433



Page 363 of 433



Page 364 of 433



Page 365 of 433



Page 366 of 433



Page 367 of 433



Page 368 of 433



Page 369 of 433



Page 370 of 433



Page 371 of 433



Page 372 of 433



Page 373 of 433



Page 374 of 433



Page 375 of 433



Page 376 of 433



Page 377 of 433



Page 378 of 433



Page 379 of 433



Page 380 of 433



Page 381 of 433



Page 382 of 433



Page 383 of 433



Page 384 of 433



Page 385 of 433



Page 386 of 433



Page 387 of 433



Page 388 of 433



Page 389 of 433



Page 390 of 433



Page 391 of 433



Page 392 of 433



Page 393 of 433



Page 394 of 433



Page 395 of 433



Page 396 of 433



Page 397 of 433



Page 398 of 433



Page 399 of 433



Page 400 of 433



Page 401 of 433



Page 402 of 433



Page 403 of 433



Page 404 of 433



Page 405 of 433



Page 406 of 433



Page 407 of 433



Page 408 of 433



Page 409 of 433



Page 410 of 433



Page 411 of 433



Page 412 of 433



Page 413 of 433



Page 414 of 433



Page 415 of 433



Page 416 of 433



Page 417 of 433



Page 418 of 433



Page 419 of 433



Page 420 of 433



Page 421 of 433



Page 422 of 433



Page 423 of 433



Page 424 of 433



Page 425 of 433



Page 426 of 433



Page 427 of 433



Page 428 of 433



Page 429 of 433



Page 430 of 433



Page 431 of 433



 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:   December 6, 2018     

SUBJECT: Creation of the B.R.E.D.S. Center  

FROM:   Student Affairs and Engagement      

ACTION ITEM: Information  

 

 

BACKGROUND:  On September 13, 2018, President Brown appointed a cross-sectional 
group of university constituents to the University Admissions Task Force.  The charge of 
the committee was to consider: 

* Identify the structure for undergraduate and graduate admissions. 

* Identify the proper personnel for the same. 

* Design standard admissions letter templates for all circumstances. 

* Specify how international, transfer, and home-schooled students will be addressed. 

* Agree to the minimal questions needed for undergraduate and graduate admissions. 

* Establish a timeline for the roll-out of new application forms or portals (with 

included designs). 

* Eliminate the application fee structure in lieu of an enrollment/housing deposit 

structure. 

* Detail the records collection and storage for new students (e.g., immunization, IEP). 

* Document the transfer articulation process. 

* Create a Project Completion and Credit for Life admission process. 

* Confirm the Pre-College Academy as a standard freshmen initiative. 

* Complete the paperwork to include Kentucky State University on both the Common 

App and HBCU Common App. 

* Address any and all other related tasks to launch an effective and efficient 

admissions process at the undergraduate and graduate levels. 

 

A draft report with recommendations was presented to President Brown on October 

16, 2018. 

 

A primary recommendation of the task force was a complete restructuring of the 

recruitment and admissions functions of the University. 

Page 432 of 433



 
SUMMARY OF PROGRAMS/ACTIVITIES:  This committee studied what we currently do 
compared to the state-of-the-art in the industry to determine how we could better align 
our recruiting, admissions, and management of the initial student experience at Kentucky 
State University. 
 
ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC GOALS:  Goal #1:  Enhance Student Enrollment, 
Improve Student Life and engagement, and Improve Student Advising and Career 
Development 
 
COMMITTEE/PROGRAM ACTION:  As a result of the task force recommendation to 
completely restructure the University recruitment and admissions functions, the 
Admissions Office has been repurposed/redesigned into the “B.R.E.D.S. Office (Bridging, 
Recruitment, Enrollment & Discovery Services Office).  It is to enhance the experience of 
potential students and parents from exploration, to application, to admissions and 
enrollment. 
 
A director of the B.R.E.D.S. Office has been hired and is currently reviewing staff and 
processes. The director will work closely with the enrollment management shared services 
partner to determine which recruitment and admissions functions will be performed and 
managed by the University and which will be handled by the shared services partner. It is 
expected that this review will be complete by early December and the office will be in full 
operation by mid-December when the shared services contract is executed.  
 
PROGRAM IMPLICATIONS:  N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  The B.R.E.D.S. Office has been structured from within existing 
budgets. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Information Item 

Page 433 of 433


